**INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM**

**NAME**

HISTORIC

Old Ravenswood School

AND/OR COMMON

"1887 School"

**LOCATION**

STREET & NUMBER

Henry Street

CITY, TOWN

Ravenswood

VICINITY OF

Third

STATE

West Virginia

CITY, TOWN

Ripley

STATE

West Virginia

**CLASSIFICATION**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>CATEGORY</th>
<th>OWNERSHIP</th>
<th>STATUS</th>
<th>PRESENT USE</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>DISTRICT</td>
<td>PUBLIC</td>
<td>OCCUPIED</td>
<td>AGRICULTURE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BUILDING(S)</td>
<td>PRIVATE</td>
<td>UNOCCUPIED</td>
<td>COMMERCIAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STRUCTURE</td>
<td>BOTH</td>
<td>WORK IN PROGRESS</td>
<td>EDUCATIONAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SITE</td>
<td>PUBLIC ACQUISITION</td>
<td>ACCESSIBLE</td>
<td>PRIVATE RESIDENCE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OBJECT</td>
<td>IN PROCESS</td>
<td>YESS. RESTRICTED</td>
<td>EDUCATIONAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OBJECT</td>
<td>BEING CONSIDERED</td>
<td>YES. UNRESTRICTED</td>
<td>MUSEUM</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

**OWNER OF PROPERTY**

NAME

Jackson County Board of Education

STREET & NUMBER

CITY, TOWN

Ripley

STATE

West Virginia

**LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION**

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC.

Jackson County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

CITY, TOWN

Ripley

STATE

West Virginia

**REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS**

TITLE

DATE

FEDERAL STATE COUNTY LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN

STATE
The Old Ravenswood School was constructed in 1887-88 by the prominent Marietta, Ohio builder H. O'Blennes for the Ravenswood Independent School District. Facing on Henry Street in the midst of Ravenswood's quiet residential section, and flanked on either side by rectangular playgrounds which give it a sense of balance, the structure easily dominates the area.

The Old Ravenswood School is a significant local example of late 19th century Eclectic architecture. The structure is two stories high, of brick masonry construction. The building is symmetrical, and has an irregular hipped roof with a truncated tower that, until 1971, supported a belfry. There is a definite emphasis on the vertical front elevation. The main hip roof is dominated at each corner by a hipped pavilion. Enriched brickwork in the cornice and frieze of the Old Ravenswood School is a feature that characterizes Victorian ornamentation. The front elevation of the tower face is pedimented and embellished with so-called "Dog Tooth" brickwork. Of special note, in terms of detail, is the millwork of the north and south recessed porches.

Structurally the building is sound. The hardwood floors are sound, there is no masonry cracking, and the foundations are dry and solid.

The interior of the two-story building is not in as good a condition as the exterior, having suffered a decade of neglect. Yet it too appears solid. Each floor consists of four large high-ceilinged classrooms. A unique feature to the interior design of the building is the direct access stairway to the second floor that begins from the front arched entrance. This staircase provides access to a landing at mid-level, which allows continued direct access to all classrooms on the second floor. The side entrances, north and south, provide access only to the first floor.

The double-hung windows have been boarded up during the period of its vacancy in order to give stability to interior features.
The 1887 School in Ravenswood, located on Henry Street and dominating the skyline of the neighborhood in which it is located, is a significant local example of late 19th Century Eclectic architecture in this area of the state. This school is also significant in that, unlike most public schools in West Virginia, this one was built by the town of Ravenswood, rather than by the county school board.

The town of Ravenswood, situated on the left bank of the Ohio River thirty five miles below Parkersburg, stands on lands once owned by George Washington. The town itself was first settled in 1810 and, though the first school began operation in 1837, Ravenswood did not get a post office until 1846. By the 1880's Ravenswood had become a thriving community of around 1,000 souls, rivaling the Jackson County seat of Ripley. Although several schools had been built in the town, the growing population of young people, had by the mid-1880's, outgrown the capacity of the existing educational facilities, with a total enrollment in 1887 of 125. That same year the Ravenswood Independent School District bowed to the demands of necessity and decided upon the erection of a new school building. The School Board was already in the position of owning a choice piece of land on Henry Street, deeded to them in 1883 by Henrietta F. Barre, a locally prominent citizen. In June of 1887 the members of the Ravenswood Independent School Board traveled up river to Parkersburg, West Virginia and Marietta, Ohio to look at public schools of those towns in an attempt to determine what type of school design they needed for their community. No apparent decision was reached, but the members came back to Ravenswood convinced that a large and imposing structure was needed for their growing town.

On August 17, 1887 the Board gave notice that it was accepting bids for the construction of a new school house. Ten bids were received and, on September 14, 1887 the Board announced it was awarding the contract to H. O'Blennes of Marietta, Ohio because "the plan and specifications call for a splendid building, and from Mr. O'Blennes' reputation as a builder, we will surely get it." Construction began almost immediately, as the housing situation among the students was becoming critical. By October the foundation was laid and, though construction halted during the hard winter of 1887-88, the new Ravenswood School was dedicated with much fanfare in August of 1888. It had been erected in less than a year, at a cost of around $16,000.00.
This imposing two-story masonry structure, surmounted by a large tower and belfry was, at the time of its dedication, the dominant architectural work of the town. The Ravenswood School served the community for 80 years, as generations of children passed through its doors, many of whom went on to local and state prominence. The School was closed in 1968 and has since served as a storage house for the Jackson County Board of Education, which took over operation of the school in 1933. Locally significant as a good example of 19th Century Eclectic Architecture in a public building, it continues to serve the community as a point of interest. The Jackson County Board of Education has announced its intention to rehabilitate the old school and put it to adaptive use. In this way, the Ravenswood School will continue to serve the community as it has for the past 91 years.
MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES


Ravenswood News, April 27, 1887 through August 10, 1888.

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 1/2 acre

QUADRANGLE NAME Ravenswood, W.V.

QUADRANGLE SCALE 1:24,000

UTM REFERENCES

A 1,7 41 3 4 41 2 0

ZONE EASTING NORTHING

B 11 3 1 1 3 1 0

ZONE EASTING NORTHING

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION Beginning at the corner of Henry and Sycamore Streets, thence with said Henry Street 210 feet to the corner of Lot No. 173, thence with a line of Lot No. 173 back 143 feet to an alley, thence with said alley 210 feet to

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE CODE COUNTY CODE

FORM PREPARED BY

NAME/TITLE

Michael J. Pauley, Historian

ORGANIZATION Historic Preservation Unit

STREET & NUMBER The Cultural Center, Capitol Complex

CITY OR TOWN Charleston

STATE West Virginia

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:

NATIONAL STATE LOCAL X

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE

FOR NPS USE ONLY

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PROPERTY IS INCLUDED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

KEEPER OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER

CHIEF OF REGISTRATION
"OLD RAVENSWOOD SCHOOL", RAVENSWOOD, JACKSON COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA


Jackson County Deed Book, October 20, 1883.
Sycamore Street, thence with Sycamore Street 143 feet to the place of beginning
to front 210 feet on Henry Street, and being Lots 169, 170, 171, & 172 as
numbered on the plot of the city of Ravenswood, District of Ravenswood, Jackson
County, West Virginia.